Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners’ Meeting
August 11, 2015

The meeting of the Board of Commisgioners (BOC), Town of Minnesotl Beach, was held
Tuesday, August 11, 2015 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Fowler, Commissioner
Casey, Commissioner Salter, and Commissioner Warren

MEMBERS ABSENT: none

OTHERS PRESENT: Carolyn Braly - Town Manager, Sam Johnson, Doug Anderson
and Donna Reynolds all from Arlington Place and Phil Hedrick.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order with a
moment of silence and led everyone in the U.S. Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the August 11, 2015 agenda.
Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the agenda. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the July 14, 2015 minutes.
Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the minutes of the July 14, 2015 meeting. All
ayes.

Public comments: Mr. Phil Hedrick commended the board on the fine job they are
doing. Sam Johnson, atty representing Arlington Place, wanted to speak to the Letier of
Credit for Arlington Place but said he would hold his remarks until Jater in the meeting,

Town Manager Report: There arc no new zoning applications. The Town is advertising
for a Town Clerk. Deadline to apply is August 17.

Planning Board Report: Chairman Humenik was not in attendance. Commissioner
Fowler reported there was not an August Planning Board meeting.

Old Business:

Update on the Arlington Place bond/Letter of Credit status: Mayor Potter reported there
had been several complaints/concerns about the condition of the roads in Arlington Place.
Mayor Potter reviewed the process he went through asking for an engineer's certification
that the Letier of Credit was sufficient enough to cover the actual cost to bring the road to
current state standards. He also reviewed the engineer's report dated September 10, 2010
that the base road bed was in compliance. Mr. Doug Anderson's email asking for an
extension of Arlington Place's Letter of Credit for another year was read into the record.
Ms. Donna Reynolds supplied an original letter for the town's records. Mr. Anderson



asked for a year's notice if the board was not going to renew the Letter of Credit.
Commissioner Fowler asked how long the road base would last without the final top coat
of asphalt. Mr. Anderson said he thinks they have an engineering company 'check’ the
base every year for deterioration. The top coat was mostly 'decorative' and you usually
wait until you have more development is finished, so everything looks 'nice.' He said
there were several 'spots' that need repair and but over all the road is holding up well.
Commissioner Fowler asked why the roads were not being finished. Mr. Anderson said
the roads could be finished, but they are holding off as long as possible because you do
not want to put heavy construction traffic on newly paved roads. He suggested maybe
they could do the top coat paving in stages. Commissioner Fowler asked what the long
term plan for the roads in Arlington Place since they are not public. He asked “will the
Homeowners' Association going to take over the roads?” Mr. Anderson said yes,
eventually, they would. Commissioner Fowler asked if the home owners brought this up
as an issue in one of your meetings? Mr. Anderson said the only complaints he has had
are from Mr. Hedrick and two or three property owners who were not members because
they had not paid their dues and are lot owners, not residents. Mr. Anderson said they
used that excuse not to pay their dues which is not acceptable. Mr. Anderson said Becca
Ryan, the sales manager, said there have been no complaints whatsoever from other
property owners/residents. Mr. Anderson said they had not had any complaints from any
state or federal agency that deal with developments, ie, DOT, CAMA, Dept. of
Environmental & Natura} Resources, etc. and have no complaints from them and no
violations. Commissioner Fowler asked Mr. Anderson if the commissioners approved the
letter of credit extention tonight for one year would he be prepared in a year from now to
get this paving done? Mr. Anderson said they could be, but thinks they would have the
issues next year as this year of paving too soon. He asked again for a renewal without
conditions. Commissioner Fowler asked Mr. Johnson if he was satistied with what he
was hearing and he stated he is Arlington Place's attorney and that he was a non-resident
lot owner. He said he was 'struck’ with what good condition the roads and streets were in
and how good the subdivision looks. Commissioner Fowler asked wouldn't the eventual
marina construction add a lot of stress to the road. Mr. Anderson said that it would. They
are still looking for someone to build the marina at some point. Ideally, they would like
to have some of that construction done before finishing the roads, but that may not be
possible. Mayor Potter said Mr. Anderson had offered twice to drive him through the
development to see the condition of the roads; and he has shared his concerns that at
somepoint in time the roads will have to be completed because inflation will catch up.
He said the town wants to be cooperative and fair to Arlinton Place. Mayor Potter asked
the commissioners if they wanted to vote tonight or wait. Commissioner Fowler moved
to accept Arlington Place's request to the extend the Letter of Credit to September 22,
2016 in the amount of $1,713, 600.00. Commissioner Fowler said he thought the next
extension would be more difficult to get but that was not part of the motion here. Mayor

Potter asked for a vote: all ayes.

Bland Road update: Commissioner Salter reported the road is established with stakes in
place to mark the boundaries. Commissioner Salter is going to negotiate with Pete



Newman regarding his bill. All trees have been cut down but the debris still needs to be
reimoved.

The stumps would be removed within the next couple weeks by Dwight Turnage. His
contract is $2000. Commissioner Salter said he is not going to put in a swell at this
point.

Country Club Drive: Commissioner Salter reported a resident had complained about
dips in Country Club Drive just beyond the trailer park. The commissioners decided no
action was necessary because the speed limit is 25 MPH and the dips should not be a
problem for anyone traveling the speed limit. Mayor Potter asked the Town Manager to
write a letter to the resident thanking them for their concerns.

Financial Report — Commissioner Warren reported the town's current assets are: First
Citizen's Bank Checking $7,268.21; First Citizen's MM $238,242.85; First South Bank &
Savings $156,437.71; Petty Cash $50.00; North Carolina Management Trust is
$200,627.67. The town currently has 3 CDs at First South Bank & Savings (one for
$20,542.96, one for $20,119.55, and one for $20,000.00). Total assets to the Town are a
total of $686,108.31. The balance sheet is in excellent shape at this time.

Mayor Potter reminded everyone of the of the public hearing at the Sepiember 8, 2015
meeting.

Commissioner Salter moved to adjourn. All ayes.

Carolyn Bral%Manager/Cley




